
 
 

  
 
 
 

CITY OF SAN BRUNO 
 CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

  

567 El Camino Real, San Bruno, CA 94066-4299 
Voice: (650) 616-7056  
http://sanbruno.ca.gov 

November 16, 2022 
 
Susy Kalkin 
ALUC Staff 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
555 County Center, 5th Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063 
 
Via USPS First Class Mail and email to kkalkin@smcgov.org 
 
 
RE:   Notice of Intent to Consider Override of ALUC Findings of Inconsistency with 
Respect to The Noise Policies for the Draft 2023-2031 Housing Element Update 
 
Dear Susy, 
 
This letter serves as a notification in accordance with Sections 21676(b) and 21676.5(a) of the 
California Public Utilities Code that the City Council of the City of San Bruno directed the City 
Manager at their meeting on November 15, 2022 to provide notice of a proposed override 
decision by the City Council. This override of the San Mateo City / County Association of 
Governments San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission’s determination of 
inconsistency on November 10. 2022 with the noise policies of the Comprehensive Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport (SFO ALUCP) 
regarding the Draft 2023-2031 Housing Element Update. 
 
Overview of San Bruno Draft 2023-2031 Housing Element Update 
 
The proposed City of San Bruno Draft 2023-2031 Housing Element Update will replace the 
existing 2015-2023 Housing Element and serve as the City of San Bruno’s guiding policy 
document for meeting the City’s future housing needs at all economic levels. Government Code 
Section 65583 (a)(3) requires the City to prepare, as part of the Housing Element, to include a 
Suitable Sites Inventory. This is an inventory of land in San Bruno that is suitable for residential 
development, including vacant sites and underutilized sites with the potential for redevelopment.   
 
In the 6th Cycle Regional Housing Needs Allocation (“RHNA”) imposed on the City by the 
Association of Bay Area Governments included 3,165 housing units, which is a substantial 
increase in the number of affordable housing opportunities required in comparison to the 5th 
Cycle RHNA allocation of 1,155 units. Additionally, the No Net Loss Law (California Government 
Code Section 65863) requires that enough sites are available at all times throughout the RHNA 
planning period to meet a jurisdiction’s remaining unmet housing needs for each income 
category. To ensure that sufficient capacity exists in the housing element to accommodate the 
RHNA throughout the planning period, HCD recommends jurisdictions create a buffer in the 
housing element inventory of at least 15 percent (equivalent to an additional 475 units allocated 
to the City of San Bruno for the 2023-2031 period). Therefore, the City’s RHNA and 15 percent 
buffer totals 3,640 units.  
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The purpose of the Suitable Sites Inventory is to evaluate whether there are sufficient sites with 
appropriate zoning to meet the RHNA goal. The Housing Element Update includes 23 Housing 
Opportunity Sites which comprise the Suitable Sites Inventory. The Suitable Sites Inventory 
includes the Shops at Tanforan (Site 14) and the San Bruno Pet Hospital (Site 19) as potential 
future housing sites. These two sites are located within SFO ALUCP Airport Influence Area B 
and within the 70 – 75 decibel (dB) Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) contour where 
housing is not compatible, pursuant to the SFO ALUCP, with limited exceptions. Therefore, the 
Draft 2023-2031 Housing Element Update, with respect to suitable sites 14 and 19, is 
inconsistent with the noise policies of the SFO ALUCP. 
 
City Council Action on November 15, 2022 
 
On November 15, 2022, the City of San Bruno City Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-112 
making draft findings and declaring an intent to consider overriding San Mateo City / County 
Association of Governments (C/CAG) Airport Land Use Commission’s (ALUC) determination of 
inconsistency with respect to noise policies for the Draft 2023-2031 Housing Element Update 
and directed the City Manager to provide notice pursuant to the State Public Utilities Code to the 
Airport Land Use Commission and the State of California Department of Transportation’s 
Division of Aeronautics regarding such findings and intent to consider overriding. The City 
Council Resolution with Exhibit A: Draft Findings are attached to this letter. This notification 
letter and Resolution have also been distributed to the Caltrans Division of Aeronautics. 
 
A public hearing date for the City Council to consider the override has not been set; it will be 
scheduled at least 45 days from the transmittal of this letter and attached materials, per Public 
Utilities Code Sections 21676(c) and 21676.5. The City Council agenda and staff report for the 
Public Hearing will be available online at under the City Council calendar at 
https://www.sanbruno.ca.gov/AgendaCenter.  
 
Consistent with Public Utilities Code Sections 21676(c) and 21676.5, the ALUC may provide 
comments on this notice to consider an override within 30 days of receiving the proposed 
decision and findings. For the City to consider your comments and include them in the record of 
the final decision on the override, please provide any comments by the close of business on 
Friday, December 16, 2022. 
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions about this at (650) 616-7002 or via email at 
dsmith@sanbruno.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Darcy Smith 
Assistant City Manager 
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Attachments:  

1. City of San Bruno City Council Resolution No. 2022-112 making Draft Findings and 
Declaring an Intent to Override 

2. San Bruno Draft 2023 – 2031 Housing Element Suitable Sites Inventory with SFO 
ALUCP Noise Contours 

 
 
CC:  Trisha Ortiz, Interim City Attorney 
 Michael Laughlin, Planning and Housing Manager 
 Michael Smith, Senior Planner 
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